

**Section I**

**Notices of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking**

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

**Division of Historical Resources**

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Historic Preservation Grants-in-Aid  
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 1A-35

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendment will provide for a waiver of financial match requirements on Division grant programs for rural communities.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Division of Historical Resources will waive the financial matching requirements on grants for rural communities that have been designated in accordance with §288.0656, Florida Statutes. Eligible communities applying for historic preservation grants with state funds made available from dedicated sources must request waiver of matching requirements at the time of grant application.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 267.031(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 267.0617(2), 288.06561 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW: (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD).

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., November 9, 2001

PLACE: R. A. Gray Auditorium, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Robert Taylor, Historic Preservationist Supervisor, Division of Historical Resources, R. A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250, (850)245-6333, Suncom 205-6333

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

**Division of Historical Resources**

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Historic Museum Grants-in-Aid  
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 1A-43

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendment will provide for a waiver of financial match requirements on Division grant programs for rural communities.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Division of Historical Resources will waive the financial matching requirements on grants for rural communities that have been designated in accordance with §288.0656, Florida Statutes. Eligible communities applying for historical museum grants must request waiver of matching requirements at the time of grant application.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 267.031 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 267.071, 267.072, 286.031, 288.06561 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD).

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., November 9, 2001

PLACE: R. A. Gray Auditorium, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jeana Brunson, Chief, Bureau of Historical Museums, Division of Historical Resources, R. A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250, (850)245-6400, Suncom 205-6400

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

**Library and Information Services**

RULE TITLE: Library Grant Programs  
 RULE NO.: 1B-2.011

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed amendment will provide for a waiver of financial match requirements on Division grant programs for rural communities.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Division of Library and Information Services will waive the financial matching requirements on grants for rural communities that have been designated in accordance with §288.0656, Florida Statutes. Eligible communities applying for Library Services and Technology Act grants, Florida Library Literacy Grants, and Library Construction grants must request waiver of matching requirements at the time of grant application.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 257.12, 257.14, 257.191, 257.192, 257.24 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 240.5185, 257.12, 257.14, 257.15, 257.16, 257.17, 257.171, 257.172, 257.18, 257.19, 257.192, 257.195, 257.21, 257.22, 257.23, 257.24, 257.25, 288.06561 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 14 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW: (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD).

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., November 9, 2001

PLACE: R. A. Gray Building Auditorium, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Barratt Wilkins, Director, Division of Library and Information Services, R. A. Gray Building, 500 South Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250, (850)245-6600, Suncom 205-6600

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF STATE**

**Division of Cultural Affairs**

RULE TITLE: Division of Cultural Affairs  
RULE NO.: 1T-1.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment is to incorporate the most recent edition of the Florida Guide to Cultural Programs for Organizations, the State Touring Program, the Florida Guide to Programs for Individual Artists, the Cultural Facilities Program Guidelines and Application, the Cultural Endowment Program Guidelines and Application, and the Cultural Endowment Program Trust Agreement. Program revisions incorporate up-dates to application deadlines, eligibility criteria, application submission requirements, financial and administrative language, and provisions for match waiver under the Rural Economic Development Initiative.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Florida Guide to Cultural Programs for Organizations, the State Touring Program, the Florida Guide to Programs for Individual Artists, the Cultural Facilities Program Guidelines and Application, the Cultural Endowment Program Guidelines and Application, and the Cultural Endowment Program Trust Agreement.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 265.284(5)(d), 265.285(1)(c), 265.286(1),(4),(6), 265.2861(2)(b), 265.51, 265.605(1), 265.608, 265.609(1),(4),(6), 265.701(4) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 215.97, 265.284, 265.286, 265.2861, 265.2865, 265.601-.606, 265.608, 265.609, 265.701, 286.25 FS.

IF REQUESTED AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., Friday, November 9, 2001  
PLACE: Division of Cultural Affairs, 1001 DeSoto Park Drive, Tallahassee, Florida

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting Linda Downey, (850)487-2980

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Linda Downey, Bureau Chief, Grants Services, Division of Cultural Affairs, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION**

**State Board of Education**

RULE TITLES: RULE NOS.:

- Specialization Requirements for Certification in the Area of Prekindergarten Students with Disabilities/Primary Education (Age Three through Grade Three) – Academic Class 6A-4.0142
- Specialization Requirements for Elementary Education (Grades K-6) – Academic Class 6A-4.0151
- Specialization Requirements for Certification in Foreign Language (Grades K-12) – Academic Class 6A-4.0243
- Specialization Requirements for Certification in Physical Education (Grades K-12) – Academic Class 6A-4.0283
- Specialization Requirements for Certification in Science (Grades 6-12) – Academic Class 6A-4.323
- Specialization Requirements for Certification in Social Science (Grades 6-12) – Academic Class 6A-4.03321
- Specialization Requirements for Certification in Family and Consumer Science (Grades 6-12) – Vocational Class 6A-4.058
- Specialization Requirements for Certification in Industrial-Arts Technology Education (Grades 6-12) – Vocational Class 6A-4.060

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the rule developments is to adopt initial certification requirements for implementation of new certification areas, to modify the subject name designation of certification areas, and to make amendments to update requirements. The effect will be a reduction of certification subject coverages resulting in a streamlined certification structure and rules that reflect current terminology and programs.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Approval of initial specialization requirements for educator certification to align to the new certification tests under development.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 229.053, 231.15, 231.17 FS.  
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 229.953, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

Requests for the rule development workshop should be addressed to: Wayne V. Pierson, Agency Clerk, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 1214, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: David Ashburn, Director, Division of Professional Educators, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 203, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (850)487-3663

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

6A-4.0142 Specialization Requirements for Certification in the Area of Prekindergarten Students with Disabilities/Primary Education (Age Three Through Grade Three) – Academic Class.

~~Competencies for the specialization requirements are listed in the publication “Competencies for Specialization Requirements for Educators’ Certification in Florida, First Edition” which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this rule. Copies of this publication may be obtained from the Bureau of Educator Certification, Florida Department of Education, The Florida Education Center, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.~~

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an undergraduate or graduate major in prekindergarten students with disabilities/primary education (age three (3) through grade three (3)), or

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with forty-five (45) semester hours in prekindergarten students with disabilities/primary education (age three (3) through grade three (3)) to include the areas specified below:

(a) Three (3) semester hours in child growth and development from conception to age eight (8);

(b) Three (3) semester hours in the historical, philosophical, and sociological perspectives in early childhood education;

(c) Eighteen (18) semester hours in developmentally appropriate integrated curriculum and practices in programs serving age three (3) through grade three (3) which include integrated field experiences;

(d) Six (6) semester hours in issues and practices to promote family and community involvement which include integrated field experiences;

(e) Three (3) semester hours in health, nutrition, and safety;

(f) Three (3) semester hours in diagnosis, assessment, and evaluation which include integrated field experiences;

(g) Six (6) semester hours in special needs of all children and their families which include integrated field experiences; and

(h) Three (3) semester hours in child guidance and classroom management which include integrated field experiences.

(3) Plan Three. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an undergraduate or graduate degree major in the area of preschool education (~~birth through age four (4))~~; or a bachelor’s or higher degree with the specialization and professional preparation requirements completed for the area of preschool education (~~birth through age four (4))~~; and

completion of twelve (12) semester hours in prekindergarten students with disabilities/primary education to include integrated field experiences as specified below:

(a) Credit in developmentally appropriate integrated curriculum and practices in programs serving children age five (5) through grade three (3);

(b) Credit in diagnosis, assessment, and evaluation for children age five (5) through grade three (3);

(c) Credit in special needs of children (age five (5) through grade ~~three~~ (3)) and their families; and

(d) Credit in child guidance and classroom management for children (age five (5) through grade three (3)).

(4) Plan Four. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an undergraduate or graduate degree major in the area of primary education (~~grades kindergarten through grade three (3))~~ and twelve (12) semester hours in prekindergarten students with disabilities/primary education to include integrated field experiences as specified below:

(a) Credit in developmentally appropriate integrated curriculum and practices in programs serving children with disabilities ages three (3) and four (4);

(b) Credit in issues and practices to promote family and community involvement;

(c) Credit in diagnosis, assessment, and evaluation for children ages three (3) and four (4); and

(d) Six (6) semester hours in special needs of all children and their families.

(5) Plan Five. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an undergraduate or graduate degree major in elementary education (~~grades one (1) through six (6))~~; or a bachelor’s or higher degree with the specialization and professional preparation requirements completed for elementary education (~~grades one (1) through six (6))~~ or primary education (~~grades kindergarten through grade three (3))~~; and fifteen (15) semester hours in prekindergarten students with disabilities/primary education to include integrated field experiences as specified below:

(a) Six (6) semester hours in developmentally appropriate integrated curriculum and practices in programs serving children with disabilities ages three (3) through five (5);

(b) Credit in health, nutrition, and safety for children;

(c) Credit in diagnosis, assessment, and evaluation of young children;

(d) Credit in the education of young children with special needs and their families; and

(e) Credit in child guidance and management of classrooms with young children.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), 231.15(1), 231.17(1) FS. Law Implemented 229.053, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17(3) FS. History—New 5-30-94, Amended 7-17-00, \_\_\_\_\_.

6A-4.0151 Specialization Requirements for Elementary Education (Grades K-6) – Academic Class.

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with a major in elementary education which includes teaching reading at the K-6 level, or

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in elementary education to include the areas specified below:

(a) Courses in teaching reading in grades K-6 to include each of the following:

1. Understanding the reading process and effective reading instruction.
2. Recognition and assessment of reading problems, and
3. Prescription and utilization of appropriate methods and materials to increase reading performance; and

(b) Courses in each of the areas specified below:

1. Content and methods for teaching writing and language arts in grades K-6.
2. Content and methods for teaching science for grades K-6.
3. Content and methods for teaching social science for grades K-6.
4. Content and methods for teaching health education and physical education for grades K-6.
5. Content and methods for teaching art for grades K-6.
6. Content and methods for teaching music for grades K-6.
7. Content and methods for teaching mathematics for grades K-6, and
8. Materials for use in grades K-6 such as children’s literature, multi-media materials, library materials, and the computer as an instructional tool.

(3) This rule is to become effective July 1, 2002, and supercedes the provisions of Rules 6A-4.014 and 6A-4.015, FAC., as of that date.

Specific Authority 229.053, 231.15, 231.17 FS. Law Implemented 229.953, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History–New 7-1-02.

6A-4.0243 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Foreign Language Separate Areas of Language Other than English (Grades K-12) – Academic Class.

(1) Specialization requirements for the following modern languages: Chinese, French, German, Greek, Hebrew, Italian, Japanese, Portuguese, Russian, and Spanish.

(a) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an undergraduate or graduate major in one of the modern languages listed in Subsection (1) of this rule, or

(b) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in one of the modern languages listed in Subsection (1) of this rule to include credit in the areas specified below:

1. History or culture of the people who speak the language as their native language,

2. Literature in the language, and

3. Applied linguistics or second language acquisition, or

(c) Plan Three. A bachelor’s or higher degree with specialization requirements completed in one (1) of the modern languages as specified in Paragraph (1)(a) or (b) of this rule a language, other than English, and twenty-one (21) semester hours in another one of the modern languages listed in Subsection (1) of this rule to include credit in the areas specified below:

1. History or culture of the people who speak the language as their native language, and
2. Literature in the language.

(2) Specialization requirements for Latin.

(a) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an undergraduate or graduate major in Latin, or

(b) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in Latin to include credit in the areas specified below:

1. Latin vocabulary, grammar, and composition,
2. Latin literature, and
3. Roman culture, or

(c) Plan Three. A bachelor’s or higher degree with specialization requirements completed in one (1) of the modern languages as specified in Paragraph (1)(a) or (b) of this rule for a language, other than English, and twenty-one (21) semester hours in Latin to include credit in the areas specified below:

1. Latin vocabulary, grammar, and composition,
2. Latin literature, and
3. Roman culture.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), 231.15(1), 231.17(3) FS. Law Implemented 231.02, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History–New 7-1-90, Amended 7-17-00.

6A-4.0283 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Physical Education (Grades K-12) – Academic Class.

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with a teacher education major in physical education, or

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in physical education to include the areas specified below:

(a) Twelve (12) semester hours in instructional design and content of physical education.

(b) Motor development.

(c) Kinesiology.

(d) Administration of physical education.

(e) Applied exercise physiology.

(f) Adaptive physical education or physical education for exceptional students.

(g) Care and prevention of human injuries, and

(h) Theory and practice in coaching.

(3) This rule is to become effective July 1, 2003, and supercedes the provisions of Rule 6A-4.028, FAC., as of that date.

Specific Authority 229.053, 231.15, 231.17 FS. Law Implemented 229.953, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History--New 7-1-03.

6A-4.0323 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Science (Grades 6-12) – Academic Class.

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with a major in general science, biology, chemistry, physics, or earth-space science, or

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in science to include the areas specified below:

- (a) Biology,
- (b) Chemistry,
- (c) Physics, and
- (d) Earth-space science.

(3) This rule is to become effective July 1, 2003, and supercedes Rule 6A-4.0322, FAC., as of that date.

Specific Authority 229.053, 231.15, 231.17 FS. Law Implemented 229.953, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History--New 7-1-03.

6A-4.03321 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Social Science (Grades 6-12) – Academic Class.

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with a major in social science, social studies, history, political science, geography, sociology, economics, or psychology.

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in social science or social studies to include:

- (a) Six (6) semester hours in United States history,
- (b) Courses in the areas specified below:
  - 1. Western civilization or European history,
  - 2. Asian, African, Latin American, or Middle Eastern history,
  - 3. Economics,
  - 4. United States government,
  - 5. Geography, and
  - 6. Sociology or psychology.

(3) This rule is to become effective July 1, 2003, and supercedes the provisions of Rule 6A-4.0332, FAC., as of that date.

Specific Authority 229.053, 231.15, 231.17 FS. Law Implemented 229.953, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History--New 7-1-03.

6A-4.058 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Family and Consumer Science ~~Home Economics~~ (Grades 6-12) – Vocational Class.

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an under graduate or graduate major in family and consumer science or home economics, or

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in family and consumer science or home economics to include credit in the areas specified below:

- (a) Clothing construction,
- (b) Textiles,
- (c) Food preparation,
- (d) Nutrition,
- (e) Child development,
- (f) Family relations,
- (g) Housing and home furnishings,
- (h) Home management, and
- (i) Family economics and consumer education.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), 231.15(1), 231.17(3)(1) FS. Law Implemented 231.02, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History--New 10-10-89, Amended 7-17-00.

6A-4.060 Specialization Requirements for Certification in Industrial Arts-Technology Education (Grades 6-12) – Vocational Class.

(1) Plan One. A bachelor’s or higher degree with an under graduate or graduate major in industrial arts or technology education, or

(2) Plan Two. A bachelor’s or higher degree with thirty (30) semester hours in industrial arts or technology education to include credit in four (4) of the ~~ten (10) seven (7)~~ areas specified below:

- (a) Materials and manufacturing processes technology to include credit in woods, metals, and man-made materials,
- (b) Drafting and design technology,
- (c) Energy; ~~and~~ power ~~and transportation~~ technology,
- (d) Graphics communications technology,
- (e) Electronics technology,
- (f) Construction technology, ~~and~~
- (g) Transportation technology,
- (h) Biomedical technology,
- (i) Information technology, and

(j) ~~(g)~~ Industrial systems technology such as robotics, laser technology, fiber optics, or other feedback controlling systems.

Specific Authority 229.053(1), 231.15(1), 231.17(3) FS. Law Implemented 231.02, 231.145, 231.15, 231.17 FS. History--New 10-10-89, Amended 11-13-96, 7-17-00.

**WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS**

**St. Johns River Water Management District**

<b>RULE TITLES:</b>	<b>RULE NOS.:</b>
Definitions	40C-8.021
Minimum Surface Water Levels and Flows and Groundwater Levels	40C-8.031

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The purpose and effect of the proposed rule amendment will be to establish minimum water levels for the following lakes in the following counties: Apshawa North and South, Cherry and Minneola, Lake County; Burkett, Irma, Martha and Pearl, Orange County; Fox and South Lakes, Brevard County; Lowery, Polk County. Also,

the proposed rule will revise minimum flows and levels for Lakes Daugharty, Drudy, Emporia, Lower Louise and Pierson, Volusia County; Stella, Putnam County. The proposed rule amendment would also correct a typographical error for Lake Howell in Seminole County, which erroneously has two different levels for “typically saturated” by repealing the 52.6 foot level. Additionally, the proposed rule amendment would clarify the definition of “semi-permanently flooded” in subsection 40C-8.021(16), F.A.C., so that exposure of the ground elevations, rather than water levels causing inundation, is expected to occur every five to ten years for extended periods during moderate droughts.

**SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED:** This proposed rule would establish or revise minimum water levels for the above listed lakes pursuant to the mandate of section 373.042, Florida Statutes. Each of these levels would have an associated hydroperiod category. The terms herein are already defined in chapter 40C-8, F.A.C. As with all minimum levels established by the District, if adopted, the minimum levels in this rule amendment would be used as a basis for imposing limitations on withdrawals of groundwater and surface water in the consumptive use permit regulatory process and for reviewing proposed surface water management systems in the environmental resource permit regulatory process.

**SPECIFIC AUTHORITY:** 373.044, 373.113 FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 373.042, 373.0421 FS.

**IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE LISTED BELOW:**

**TIME AND DATE:** 1:00 p.m., November 15, 2001

**PLACE:** St. Johns River Water Management District’s Headquarters, 4049 Reid Street, Palatka, Florida 32177

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS:** Norma K. Messer, Rules

Coordinator, St. Johns River Water Management District, Office of General Counsel, P. O. Box 1429, Palatka, Florida 32178-1429, (386)329-4459, Suncom 860-4459

**THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:**

**40C-8.021 Definitions.**

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the following terms shall have the following meanings.

(1) through (15) No change.

(16) “Semi-permanently flooded” means a hydroperiod category where surface water inundation persists in most years. When surface water is absent the water table is usually near the land surface. In many lakes with emergent marshes this water level is near the lower elevation that supports emergent marsh or floating vegetation and peat substrates, or other highly organic hydric substrates. This characterization may not be true for herbaceous wetlands around sandhill type lakes, which often have emergent vegetation that follows declining water levels to below the lower elevation of peat substrate. Water levels causing inundation are expected to occur approximately eighty percent of the time over a long term period of record. ~~Exposure of these ground elevations is Water levels causing inundation~~ are expected to re-occur, on average, about every five to ten years for extended periods (several or more months) during moderate droughts.

(17) through (19) No change.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113 FS. Law Implemented 373.042, 373.415 FS. History—New 9-16-92, Amended 8-17-94, 6-8-95,\_\_\_\_\_.

**40C-8.031 Minimum Surface Water Levels and Flows and Groundwater Levels.**

(1) No change.

(2) The following minimum surface water levels are established:

LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
<u>(a) APSHAWA NORTH</u>	<u>LAKE</u>	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>85.0</u>	<u>83.3</u>	<u>81.3</u>	
<u>(b) APSHAWA SOUTH</u>	<u>LAKE</u>	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>86.0</u>	<u>84.7</u>	<u>83.2</u>	
<u>(c) ARGENTA</u>	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		50.1	47.7	46.3	
<u>(d) ASHBY</u>	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOOD		13.8	12.1	11.1	
<u>(e) BANANA</u>	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.0	36.2	34.4	
<u>(f) BELL</u>	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		42.5	40.5	38.7	
<u>(g) BIG</u>	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		26.1	25.0	23.7	
<u>(h) BIG POND</u>	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		41.8	39.5	38.1	
<u>(i) BLUE POND</u>	CLAY	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		174.1	173.3	171.7	
<u>(j) BOGGY MARSH</u>	LAKE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		117.3	115.9	114.5	
<u>(k) BRANTLEY</u>	SEMINOLE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		46.3	45.6	44.1	
<u>(l) BROOKLYN</u>	CLAY	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		114.6	108.0	101.0	
<u>(m) BROWARD</u>	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		40.0	38.25	36.5	
<u>(n) BURKETT</u>	<u>ORANGE</u>	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>53.5</u>	<u>52.6</u>	<u>51.2</u>	
<u>(o) CHERRY</u>	<u>LAKE</u>	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>96.0</u>	<u>94.9</u>	<u>93.4</u>	

LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
(p) CLEAR	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		37.4	36.4	34.9	
(q) COLBY	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		28.3	26.6	25.2	
(r) COMO	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.0	36.2	34.4	
(s) COMO, LITTLE LAKE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.0	36.6	35.2	
(t) COWPEN	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		89.1	85.7	84.2	
(u) COW POND	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		40.5	39.8	37.6	
(v) COON POND	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.7	34.6	33.1	
(w) CRYSTAL/BAKER	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.5	33.9	33.0	
(x) DAUGHARTY	VOLUSIA	<del>N/A</del> SEASONALLY FLOODED <del>N/A</del> TYPICALLY FLOODED <del>N/A</del> SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED <del>N/A</del> <del>N/A</del>	<del>46.3</del>	<del>44.8</del> <del>45.5</del>	<del>42.6</del> <del>44.5</del>	<del>41.2</del> <del>43.0</del>	<del>41.5</del>
(y) DAVIS	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		36.2	35.4	34.0	
(z) DEEP	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.0	33.1	32.2	
(aa) DIAS	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY FLOODED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		34.5	34.1	32.8	
(bb) DISSTON	FLAGLER	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY FLOODED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		13.8	13.2	12.5	
(cc) DORR	LAKE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		43.5	43.1	42.1	



LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
<u>(dd)</u> DREAM POND	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		49.0	47.5	46.0	
<u>(ee)</u> DRUDY	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		<del>42.1</del> 42.3	<del>40.6</del> 41.8	<del>39.1</del> 40.5	
<u>(ff)</u> ECHO	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY FLOODED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.8	36.7	35.2	
<u>(gg)</u> EMPORIA	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		<del>38.9</del> 37.5	<del>35.8</del> 36.4	<del>34.3</del> 35.0	
<u>(hh)</u> ESTELLA	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.6	37.2	36.5	
<u>(ii)</u> FOX	<u>BREVARD</u>	<u>TEMPORARILY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>16.9</u>	<u>16.0</u>	<u>14.6</u>	
<u>(jj)</u> GENEVA	CLAY	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		103.0	101.0	98.5	
<u>(kk)</u> GEORGES LAKE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		98.4	97.8	97.0	
<u>(ll)</u> GERTIE	VOLUSIA	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		27.5	25.6	23.3	
<u>(mm)</u> GORE	FLAGLER	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		21.6	20.8	19.8	
<u>(nn)</u> GRANDIN	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		81.8	81.3	80.1	
<u>(oo)</u> HELEN	VOLUSIA	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		46.1	44.2	43.6	
<u>(pp)</u> HIRES	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		41.0	39.5	38.0	
<u>(qq)</u> HOKEY	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.4	33.7	32.3	
<u>(rr)</u> HOWELL	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		34.5	33.6	31.8	

LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
<u>(ss)</u> HOWELL	SEMINOLE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED <del>TYPICALLY SATURATED</del>		53.7	52.9	51.5	
<u>(tt)</u> IRMA	ORANGE	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>55.1</u>	<u>54.8</u>	<u>53.4</u>	
<u>(uu)</u> KERR	MARION	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		24.4	22.9	21.5	
<u>(vv)</u> LIZZIE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		43.9	42.7	41.7	
<u>(ww)</u> LOUISA	LAKE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		96.5	95.4	94.0	
<u>(xx)</u> LOWER LAKE LOUISE	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		<del>31.8</del> <del>32.0</del>	<u>31.2</u> <del>30.5</del>	<u>29.7</u> <del>29.2</del>	
<u>(yy)</u> LOWERY	POLK	<u>TEMPORARILY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>130.0</u>	<u>128.0</u>	<u>126.5</u>	
<u>(zz)</u> MAGNOLIA	CLAY	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		124.7	124.2	121.4	
<u>(aaa)</u> MALL, LITTLE LAKE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.7	36.8	35.2	
<u>(bbb)</u> MARGARET	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.2	34.5	32.5	
<u>(ccc)</u> MARTHA	ORANGE	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>53.5</u>	<u>52.6</u>	<u>51.2</u>	
<u>(ddd)</u> MARVIN	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		38.6	37.3	36.3	
<u>(eee)</u> MCGRADY	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		41.5	39.9	37.8	
<u>(fff)</u> MCKASEL	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED	36.7	35.5		34.1	

LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
<u>(ggg)</u> MELROSE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		105.2	104.2		102.8
<u>(hhh)</u> MILLS	SEMINOLE	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		42.5	41.4		39.9
<u>(iii)</u> MINNEOLA	<u>LAKE</u>	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>96.0</u>	<u>95.3</u>		<u>93.9</u>
<u>(jjj)</u> NETTLES/ ENGLISH	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		44.3	42.7		41.7
<u>(kkk)</u> NORRIS	LAKE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		30.5	29.7		29.1
<u>(lll)</u> NORTH COMO PARK	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		41.3	39.7		38.5
<u>(mmm)</u> NORTH TALMADGE	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		55.6	54.4		52.9
<u>(nnn)</u> OMEGA	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		57.4	56.1		54.0
<u>(ooo)</u> ORIO	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		37.1	35.6		34.7
<u>(ppp)</u> PAM	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		39.3	37.5		36.1
<u>(qqq)</u> PEARL	<u>ORANGE</u>	<u>SEASONALLY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>53.5</u>	<u>52.6</u>		<u>51.2</u>
<u>(rrr)</u> PIERSON	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		<u>34.4</u> <del>35.5</del>	<u>33.8</u> <del>34.2</del>		<u>32.4</u> <del>32.5</del>
<u>(sss)</u> PINE ISLAND	LAKE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		107.7	106.8		105.4
<u>(ttt)</u> PREVATT	ORANGE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		56.0	53.0		50.9

LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
<u>(uuu)</u> PRIOR	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		42.3	40.0	39.0	
<u>(vvv)</u> PURDOM	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		37.0	36.4	35.0	
<u>(www)</u> SAND	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		40.9	39.0	36.6	
<u>(xxx)</u> SAND HILL	CLAY	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		132.0	131.65	129.5	
<u>(yyy)</u> SCOGGIN	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.0	34.1	32.7	
<u>(zzz)</u> SHAW	VOLUSIA	N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A	38.5	36.9	36.2	34.0	32.0
<u>(aaa)</u> SILVER	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		36.5	35.1	34.0	
<u>(bbb)</u> SOUTH	<u>BREVARD</u>	<u>TEMPORARILY FLOODED</u> <u>TYPICALLY SATURATED</u> <u>SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED</u>		<u>16.9</u>	<u>16.0</u>	<u>14.6</u>	
<u>(ccc)</u> STAR	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		77.5	75.4	74.0	
<u>(ddd)</u> STELLA	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		<u>39.4</u> <del>39.9</del>	<u>38.6</u> <del>39.6</del>	<u>37.2</u> <del>38.0</del>	
<u>(eee)</u> SUNSET	LAKE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		85.9	83.5	81.0	
<u>(fff)</u> SWAN	PUTNAM	TEMPORARILY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED		93.0	90.3		
<u>(ggg)</u> SYLVAN	SEMINOLE	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		40.4	38.9	37.5	
<u>(hhh)</u> TARHOE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		37.0	36.0	35.2	

LAKE NAME	COUNTY	HYDROPERIOD CATEGORY	MINIMUM INFREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM FREQUENT HIGH	MINIMUM AVERAGE LEVEL	MINIMUM FREQUENT LOW	MINIMUM INFREQUENT LOW
<u>(iii)</u> THREE ISLAND LAKES	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		23.4	21.8	18.8	
<u>(iii)</u> TRONE	PUTNAM	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY FLOODED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		37.5	35.7	34.3	
<u>(kkk)</u> TROUT	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		23.3	20.9	17.7	
<u>(III)</u> UPPER LAKE LOUISE	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		35.3	34.6	33.2	
<u>(mmmm)</u> WASHINGTON	BREVARD	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		15.6	14.2	12.8	
<u>(nnnn)</u> WAUBERG	ALACHUA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		67.4	67.1	65.6	
<u>(oooo)</u> WEIR	MARION	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		57.2	56.4	54.9	
<u>(pppp)</u> WINNEMISSETT	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		59.5	57.8	56.0	
<u>(qqqq)</u> WINONA	VOLUSIA	SEASONALLY FLOODED TYPICALLY SATURATED SEMIPERMANENTLY FLOODED		36.1	33.5	32.0	

(3) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113 FS. Law Implemented 373.042, 272.0421, 373.103, 373.415 FS. History--New 9-16-92, Amended 8-17-94, 6-8-95, 1-17-96, 8-20-96, 10-20-96, 11-4-98, 6-27-00, 2-13-01.

**DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES**

**Division of Retirement**

RULE TITLE: Approved Forms  
 RULE NO.: 60S-9.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department of Management Services proposes to develop two new forms and fifteen revised forms related to Florida Retirement System participation, service credit, and benefits.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Form DP-TEOC is a new Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) form to be used by elected officers with membership in the Elected Officers' Class (EOC) of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) who terminate their DROP participation, implementing the provisions of Section 121.053(1), F.S. The member's name and social security number will be electronically printed on the form prior to mailing. Form FST-11so2 is a new form to be used by a contingent beneficiary to apply for benefits from a deceased FRS member's account. It was created to accommodate workflow recommendations of the Division of Retirement's Reengineering, Improvement and Modernization (RIM) project. Form HIS-1 is being revised to reflect a change in the minimum monthly Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) payment as provided in Section 112.363(3)(e), F.S. Form SB-13b is being revised to clarify the definition of joint annuitant as provided in Section 121.021(28)(b), F.S. Forms FRS-402 and FRS-405 are being revised to implement a change of membership in the Special Risk Class, as provided in Chapter 01-235, Laws of Florida. Form EOC-1 is being revised to add a section for the member's class code. Form FRS-M81 is being revised to reflect a change in the vesting law to implement Chapter 00-169, Laws of Florida and to include the IRS rule regarding after-tax contributions. Form DP-TERM is being revised to clarify a statement regarding contractual services. The Rollover Form is being revised so that members who elect to rollover a refund of their retirement contributions may use it. Forms DP-11, DP-ELE and DT-11 are being revised to reflect changes in the DROP provisions for elected officers in the EOC and instructional personnel as provided in Chapters 01-235 and 01-47, Laws of Florida, respectively. Form FR-9 is being revised to implement a change in the DROP provisions for instructional personnel as provided in Chapter 01-47, Florida Statutes. Form FC-1 is being revised to indicate a change in fax number. Form FR-13 is being revised to eliminate wording that refers to "the reverse side of the form", which is obsolete as a result of the Division of Retirement's RIM project. Form DP-PAYT is being revised to include new rollover options as provided in the recently passed federal legislation, the Economic Growth and Tax Reconciliation Act of 2001- "EGTRRA".

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 121.031 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 121.021, 121.0515, 121.053, 121.091, 121.363 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., November 14, 2001

PLACE: 2nd Floor Conference Room, Cedars Executive Center, Building C, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Fred Springer, Department of Management Services, 4050 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0950, (850)487-1898, springf@dms.state.fl.us.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers**

RULE TITLE: Inspection Criteria  
 RULE NO.: 61G8-21.003

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to review this rule to determine if amendments are necessary.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Inspection Criteria for Funeral Establishments.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 470.005, 470.024(10) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 470.024(10) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers**

RULE TITLE: Criteria  
 RULE NO.: 61G8-24.042

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to review this rule to determine if amendments are necessary

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Centralized Embalming Facility Inspection Criteria.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 470.005, 470.024(10), 470.0301 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 470.024(10), 470.0301 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers**

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Operating Procedures (Centralized Embalming Facilities) 61G8-24.0425

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Require system to track and identify remains.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Tracking System Requirements.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 470.005, 470.0301(2)(h) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 470.0301(2)(h) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers**

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Funeral Establishments 61G8-33.001

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose for the rule development is to establish a system of identification to be used in handling and storing human remains in Funeral Establishments.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Funeral Establishments.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 470.005(3), 470.024(10), 470.0315(4) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 470.005(3), 470.024(10), 470.0315(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers**

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Direct Disposal Establishments 61G8-33.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose for the rule development is to provide procedures relating to identification of human remains at Direct Disposal Establishments.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Direct Disposal Establishments.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 470.005(3), 470.0315(4) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 470.005(3), 470.0315(4) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE ISSUE OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Building Code Administrators and Inspectors Board**

RULE TITLE: Aggravating and Mitigating Factors  
RULE NO.: 61G19-5.003  
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Board proposes to update the above rule.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Aggravating and Mitigating Factors.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 468.606, 455.2273 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.2273 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Building Code Administrators and Inspectors, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0750

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION**

**Florida Real Estate Commission**

RULE TITLE: School Records; Class Roster  
RULE NO.: 61J2-17.012  
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule development is to comply with the Department's technology advancements.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed rule development affects rule provisions relating to data submissions by education providers for the purpose of monitoring compliance with education requirements.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 475.451 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 475.2177(1) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 8:30 a.m. or as soon thereafter as possible, November 19, 2001

PLACE: Division of Real Estate, Hurston Building, Commission Meeting Room, Room 301, North Tower, 400 West Robinson Street, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Florida Real Estate Commission, Lori Crawford, Deputy Clerk, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building, North Tower, Suite N308, Orlando, Florida 32801

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

DOCKET NO.: 01-44R

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Stationary Sources – General Requirements  
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 62-210

RULE TITLE: Administrative Permit Corrections  
RULE NO.: 62-210.360

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Department is proposing to delete Rule 62-210.360(5), F.A.C., in accordance with the proposal to delete Rule 62-213.410(2), F.A.C. This Chapter 62-210 rule section provides for incorporating requirements of new or revised air construction permits into an existing Title V air operation permit by administrative permit correction. The Department is proposing to replace the deleted sections with new Rule 62-213.405, F.A.C., Concurrent Processing of Applications for Air Construction Permit and Title V Air Operation Permit.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed amendments would affect Title V air permitting.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 403.061 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 403.061, 403.087 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, November 14, 2001

PLACE: Douglas Building, First Floor, Conference Room A, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Ms. Wendy Alexander, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Air Resource Management, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Station 5500, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, (850)921-9559

If accommodation for a disability is needed to participate in this activity, please notify the Personnel Services Specialist in the Bureau of Personnel at (850)487-1855 or (800)955-8771 (TDD), at least seven days before the meeting.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

**DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION**

DOCKET NO.: 01-45R

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Operation Permits for Major Sources of Air Pollution  
RULE CHAPTER NO.: 62-213

RULE TITLES: Concurrent Processing of Applications for Air Construction Permit and Title V Air Operation Permit  
RULE NOS.: 62-213.405



Changes Without Permit Revision 62-213.410  
 Permit Applications 62-213.420

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Department is proposing to create Rule 62-213.405, F.A.C., Concurrent Processing of Applications for Air Construction Permit and Title V Air Operation Permit, to provide the option of processing an application for air construction permit and Title V air operation permit concurrently upon applicant request. The Department is proposing to delete Rule 62-213.410(2), F.A.C., which erroneously provides for implementing requirements of new or revised air construction permits through an existing Title V air operation permit without permit revision. Finally, the Department is proposing to add the requirement to list ammonia on an air operation permit application for each emission unit that emits or has the potential to emit equal to or greater than 12.5 tons/year of ammonia, if the Title V source emits or has the potential to emit greater than 250 tons/year of ammonia.

**SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED:** The proposed amendments would affect Title V air permitting procedures.

**SPECIFIC AUTHORITY:** 403.061, 403.0872 FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 403.061, 403.0872 FS.

**A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:**

**TIME AND DATE:** 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, November 14, 2001

**PLACE:** Douglas Building, First Floor, Conference Room A, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS:** Ms. Wendy Alexander, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Air Resource Management, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Station 5500, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400, (850)921-9559.

If accommodation for a disability is needed to participate in this activity, please notify the Personnel Services Specialist in the Bureau of Personnel at (850)487-1855 or (800)955-8771 (TDD), at least seven days before the meeting.

**THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.**

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Board of Medicine**

**RULE TITLE:** **RULE NO.:**

Standards of Practice in Certain Office Settings 64B8-9.0075

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Board proposes the development of a rule amendment to address practice in clinics registered under Section 456.0375, Florida Statutes.

**SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED:** Clarification of requirements for practice in clinics registered under Section 456.0375, Florida Statutes.

**SPECIFIC AUTHORITY:** 456.0375, 458.309, 458.331(1)(v) FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 456.0375, 458.331(1) FS.

**IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAW.**

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS:** Tanya Williams, Executive Director, Board of Medicine/MQA, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253

**THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:**

64B8-9.0075 Standards of Practice in Certain Office Settings.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Licensed physicians and physician assistants in a clinic registered under section 456.0375, Florida Statutes ~~practice setting that is not identified in section (2) above, nor under the ownership and control of an actively licensed Florida physician who is responsible for ensuring that the requirements in section (2) are complied with,~~ may reasonably rely upon a Florida licensed medical director ~~physician in charge~~ to ensure compliance with the responsibilities set out in section (2), only if the medical director ~~physician in charge~~ has filed a notarized statement on a form approved by the Board of Medicine, specifically agreeing to accept the following responsibilities on behalf of one or more named licensed physicians or physician assistants in the practice setting:

(a) through (e) No change.

Specific Authority 456.0375, 458.309, 458.331(1)(v) FS. Law Implemented 456.0375, 458.331(1) FS. History--New 11-13-00, Amended.

**DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH**

**Division of Environmental Health and Statewide Programs**

**RULE CHAPTER TITLE:** **RULE CHAPTER NO.:**

Emergency Medical Services 64E-2

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** Emergency Medical Technician/Paramedic Certification/Examination Application: To comply with Section 401.273, F.S., by including a question on the application to determine if certificateholders are available to help staff special needs shelters and Disaster Medical Assistance Teams (DMATs) during disasters. The proposed form will eliminate duplicative information on the requirements for certification and will clarify reporting requirements related to the applicant's felony status and the testing requirements for National Registry of Emergency Medical Technician certificateholders.

**Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity:** To amend the rule to eliminate Bureau oversight of county ordinances.



Modification of Terms of Invitation to Bid,  
 Request for Proposals or Request  
 for Qualifications 67-49.004  
 Responsibility of Bidders and Offerors 67-49.005  
 Evaluation of Bids or Proposals 67-49.006  
 Selection Process 67-49.007  
 Minority Business Enterprise 67-49.008  
 Notice of Award 67-49.009  
 Selection Protest Procedures 67-49.010

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The purpose of this Rule is to establish the procedures by which the Corporation shall procure commodities or contractual services.

**SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED:** If requested in writing a Rule Development workshop will be held to receive comments and suggestions from interested persons relative to proposed amendments to this Rule.

**SPECIFIC AUTHORITY:** 420.507(12) FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 420.507(13),(27) FS.

**IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:**

**TIME AND DATE:** 10:00 a.m., November 13, 2001

**PLACE:** Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Rick Seltzer Conference Room, 6th Floor, Tallahassee, FL 32301-1329

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:** Robin L. Grantham, Contracts Analyst, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-1329, (850)488-4197

Any person requiring special accommodation at this workshop because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Laurie Camp at the above address. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please use the Florida Dual Party Relay system, which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

**THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.**

## Section II Proposed Rules

### DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

**RULE TITLE:** Attorney Services **RULE NO.:** 2-37.010

**PURPOSE AND EFFECT:** The Department intends to incorporate revised forms entitled "Request for Attorney General Approval of Private Attorney Services" and "Office of the Attorney General Attachment A for Private Attorney Services" into the rule.

**SUMMARY:** The proposed rule amendments incorporate the revised forms entitled "Request for Attorney General Approval of Private Attorney Services" and "Office of the Attorney General Attachment A for Private Attorney Services" into the rule.

**SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST:** No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

**SPECIFIC AUTHORITY:** 287.059 FS.

**LAW IMPLEMENTED:** 16.015, 287.059 FS.

**IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):**

**TIME AND DATE:** 10:00 a.m., November 20, 2001

**PLACE:** Room 324, Collins Building, 107 W. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL

**THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS:** Larry Daugherty, Senior Management Analyst II, Office of the Attorney General, PL-01, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050

**THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:**

2-37.010 Attorney Services.

(1) The Department of Legal Affairs adopts a form to be filled out by agencies who wish to request representation by private attorneys. Form OAG-001 (rev. 9/2001), entitled "Request for Attorney General Approval of Private Attorney Services," effective ~~5-18-00~~, is hereby incorporated by reference.

(2) All contracts for private attorney services shall contain an addendum entitled "Office of the Attorney General Attachment A for Private Attorney Services," Form OAG-002, (rev. 9/2001), effective ~~(rev. 2/2001)~~, which is hereby incorporated by reference.

(3) Copies of the forms may be obtained from the General Legal Division, Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol PL-01, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050.

Specific Authority 287.059 FS. Law Implemented 16.015, 287.059 FS. History—New 10-7-90, Formerly 2-1.013, Amended 7-12-93, 10-29-97, 5-18-00, 6-5-01,\_\_\_\_\_.

**NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:** Larry Daugherty, Senior Management Analyst II

**NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE:** Gerald B. Curington, Assistant Deputy Attorney General

**DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD:** September 19, 2001